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NOMINATION OF HISTORIC BUILDING, STRUCTURE, SITE, OR OBJECT
PHILADELPHIA REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

PHILADELPHIA HISTORICAL COMMISSION \-775 /:/ZQ—

SUBMIT ALL ATTACHED MATERIALS ON PAPER AND IN ELECTRONIC FORM ON CD (MS WORD FORMA

1. ADDRESS OF HISTORIC RESOURCE (must comply with an Office of Proparty Assessment address)
Street address: 928-930 Christian Street

Postal code: 19147 Councilmanic District.__First (1st)

2. NAME OF HISTORIC RESOURCE

Historic Name: '""Madonna House"

Common Name: unk.

3. TYPE OF HISTORIC RESOURCE
KiBuilding [] Structure [ ] Site (] Object

4. PROPERTY INFORMATION

Condition: Jexcellent X good (] fair (] poor (] ruins
Occupancy: @(l occupied [] vacant (] under construction (] unknown
Current use: Condominia

5. BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Please attach a plot plan and written description of the boundary.
Staff is kindly requested to provide.

6. DESCRIPTION

Please attach a description of the historic resource and supplement with current photographs.

7. SIGNIFICANCE
Please attach the Statement of Significance.

Period of Significance (from year to year): from __ 1923 to 1924

Date(s) of construction and/or alteration: 1923-1924.,
Architect, engineer, and/or designer: Charles J. Cummiskey
Builder, contractor, and/or artisan: W.R. Dougherty

Original ownari_Catholic Missionary Society/ Archdiocese of Phila.

Other significant persons:
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The historic resource satisfies the following criteria for designation (check all that apply):

(a) Has significant character, interest or value as part of the development, heritage or cultural
characteristics of the City, Commonwealth or Nation or is associated with the life of a parson
significantio the past; or,

(b) Is associated with an event of importance to the history of the City, Commonwealth or Nation:
or,

(c) Reflects the environment in an era characterized by a distinctive architectural style; or,

(d) Embodies distinguishing characteristics of an architectural style or engineering specimen: or,
(e) Is the work of a designer, architect, landscape architect or designer, or engineer whose work
has significantly influenced the historical, architectural, economic, social, or cultural development of
the City, Commonwealth or Nation; or,

(f) Contains elements of design, detail, materials or craftsmanship which represent a significant
innovation; or,

(g) Is part of or related to a square, park or other distinctive area which should be preserved
according to an historic, cultural or architectural motif; or.

(h) Owing to its unique location or singular physical characteristic, represents an established and
familiar visual feature of the neighborhood, community or City; or,

(i) Has vielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in pre-history or history; or

(j) Exemplifies the cultural, political, economic, social or historical heritage of the community.

8. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Please attach

9. NOMINATOR

BRGRRRLBH Date
Name with Titte Celeste A. Morello, MS, MA gy
Street Address 1234 South Sheridan Street Telephone 215.334.6008

City, State, and Postal Code Philadelphiia, PA 19147-4820

Nominator [ is Xl is not the propsry cwner

PHC Use ONLY

Date of Receipt: 10/8/2021

X Correct-Comiplete [ ] Incorrect-Incomplsis Date: 10/28/2021
Date of Notice Issuance  10/28/2021

Property Owner at Time of Notice

Name: James Campenella

Address 1111 Locust St, Unit C

City Philadelphia State PA Postal Cods 19107

Date(s) Reviewsad by the Committeg on Histeric Designation 12/1/2021

Date(s) Reviewed by the Historical Commission: 1/14/2022

Date of Final Action:  1/14/2022; designated under Criteria for Designation A, D, J (no to Criterion H)

X Designated LI Rejected

3:12/18
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BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION (supplemented by Historical Commission Staff)
Premises “A”

All that certain lot or piece of ground with the buildings and improvements thereon erected. Situate on
the Southeast corner of Christian St and Delhi (late Stewart) Street, in the 2" Ward of the City of
Philadelphia. Containing in front or breadth on said Christian Street 16 feet and extending of that
breadth in length or depth Southward along said Delhi Street 70 feet. Bounded Northwardly by Christian
Street, Southwardly by a 3 feet wide alley extending West into Delhi Street, Eastwardly by ground now
or late of Coleman Fisher and Westwardly by Delhi Street, aforesaid.

Premises “B”

All that certain lot or piece of ground with buildings and improvements thereon erected. Situate on the
South side of Christian Street at the distance of 16 feet Eastward from the East side of Delhi Street in the
2" Ward of the city of Philadelphia. Containing in front or breadth on the said Christian Street 30 feet
extending of that width in length or depth Southward on the East line thereof 73 feet and on the West
line thereof 70 feet to a 3 feet wide alley.

Being No. 928-930 Christian Street.
Together as respects both of the premises above described with the free and common use right liberty
and privilege of the said Delhi Street and of said 3 feet wide alley as and for a passageway and

watercourse at all times hereafter forever.

Source: Philadox, Document ID #51253995, Recorded 8/27/2005




As adopted January 14, 2022

-3b-

Photographs: 928-30 Christian Street (supplemented by staff)

928-30 Christian Street: Front elevation along Christian Street.
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View of with main entrance and masonry details.
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View of front (north) and east elevations.

View of front (north) and west elevations. The west elevation faces S Delhi Street.
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Cornerstone showing 1923 construction date. Front entryway with masonry detailing.

Small alleyway runs along south elevation. View of west elevation from S Delhi Street.
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DESCRIPTION:

This handsome three story building facing Christian Street
is of Yale-Tex brick, an unusual type with black flecks in the
brick and in the mortar% A hip roof extends well over the walls.
Rectangular in plan, the building's design echoes the Florentine
palazzo with the flush facade, subtle rounded arches at the facade
and five bays along the east and west sides. These arches are
blind, holding flat-lintel windows. The brick masonry produces
textures along the belt courses, around
the windows and portal on the
north (Christian Street). The
main feature is the portal,
with its two-tomned surround
on the double doors and the
carved limestone archivolt which
put emphasis on the replica of
the colorful Della Robbia terra
cotta of the '"Madonna and Child."

The building is elevated
above Christian Street and ac-
cessed by double stairs from the east or west. The third level's
windows are rounded and in singles while groups of windows are on
mainly the second level. Each story was intended to be individual
in character. The overall condition is good for the residents who
occupy the building. The building measures 43 by 70 feet.

2
Recent photographs (attached and above) show aspects of this
special building's overlooked featureg which add to the legacy of
Philadelphia's .former Little Italy's past.

1
"The Catholic Standard and Times,' August 4, 1923; Philadelphia
Real Estate Record and Builders' Guide, January 2, 1923 both name

Charles Cummiskey as the architect and W.R. Dougherty as builder.

2 .
Photographs taken in October, 2021, credited to Anthony DiFlorio, III.
Criterion (d) will discuss :this issue later.
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PHILADELPHIA, BATURDAY, AUGUST 4, 1923

GoogleMaps image (below)
is consistent to the archi-
tect's drawing of 1923, on

right.

Proposed New Madonna House

Summarized building déscription was
published in The Philadelphia Real
Estate Record on January 2, 1923:

Madonna House, Christian street” near Tenth street,
Philadelphia. Architect, Charles

J. Cummiskey, 118 West Sharpnack street,
Philadelphia. Owners, Catholic Missionary ?Society,
Rev. Edward T. Lyng, Director, St. Paul’s Roman
Catholic Church, Tenth and Christian Streets,
Philadelphia. Brick, steel, limestone, cut stone, 3
stories and basement, 43x70 feet, slag roof,
granolithic, maple and pine floors, safety treads,
metal window guards, metal lath, marble work, hollow
metal doors, bond, iron work (heating, electricc
fixtures and fly screens reserved), electric work.
Contract awarded to W. R, Dougherty, 1610 Sansom .
street, Philadelphia.
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Madonna House's east wall
shows roof overhang, blind
rounded arches and the de-
corative brick under the
belt courses.

Uncoordinated brick fills

a rounded space with masonry

in a textured pattern.

Below, the west wall shows
color variation to distinguish

the base. Note the corner-
stone in partial view.
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The Madonna House's north side
(facade) juts out to Christian
Street.(right) The Dougherty
contractors' brick work is best
seen on the facade: belt course,
surround at the portal and espe-

cially at the window frames.
(See p. 22)

The Della Robbia terra cotta re-
plica identifies the building,
(left and below), but it is also

consistent to the "Florentine
palazzo" design by reference of

15th century sculpture.

(DiFlorio photos.)

Detail (right) of
terra cotta plaque
seen in 15th cen-
tury Florence--or
during the Italian

Renaissance.
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Madonna House was
constructed by the

W.R. Dougherty Company,
which built Holmesburg
Prison and many Archdi-
ocesan buildings at leas
from the 1890s. At left,
the Dougherty Company
was at work from 1922

to 1924 on Our Lady of

Mount Carmel Church in
" South Philadelphia.

OUR LADY OF MT. CARMEL CHURCH

At this project, the
builders used "Economy
Concrete" an inexpensive '"concrete stone" which was to lower the

budget costs for the church.

For the Madonna House, the Dougherty Company used '"Yale-Tex brick"
another rather new building material, which was made in Pittsburg
by Gloninger & Company in 1922. The dark gold brick at the Madonna
house is not smooth--in keeping with the design's characteristic
rough finish. The brick and mortar look as if ground pepper or

small black flecks were combined into the brick or mortar mixtur=.
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STATEMENT of SIGNIFICANCE:

Organized in 1903 by Right Reverend Monsignor Henry T. Drum-
goole, DD, LLD, as the Archdiocese of Philadelphia's first ''Mission-
ary Society," the Madonna House had outgrown the 814 South 10th
Street location and the nominated building was constructed from
1923 to 1924. '"The Catholic Missionary Society'" of the Archdiocese
soon made this building its headquarters, with activities here for
Italian immigrants, especially their children, to provide skills,
learning, dental, medical and legal services, but mainly Catholic
supervision to maintain the faith. When the Madonna House initially
was Father Drumgoole's concept, the area from Bainbridge Street
southward to just below Washington Avenue, Sixth Street, westward
was heavily settled with Italians from the ¢.1880 to 1920 influx--

a great majority were impoverished and with too many children to
maintain. While parents or the parent-less strived to live on the
streets, or cramped rooms, children were grossly neglected--to

be left orphaned. The Church was concerned with the social issues
arising from these conditions and how so many Protestant groups

sought out the Italians®

and pointed to the lack of interest shown
by the Archdiocese. This was not true, and more than fifty years
before :the Madonna House's founding, in the 1860s, many social wel-
fare programs were started by Italians and Italian Americans at

St. Mary Magdalen de Pazzi Church, just two and one-half blocks
southeast of the nominated building. Protestant groups tried as
early as the 1880s to benefit from Italian converts; by the 1900s
through the 19208,5

the area and brought not only Episcopalians, but Presbyterians and

the quantity of southern Italians overwhelmed

Methodists to challenge the Archdiocese's handling of immigrants
in the "Italian quarter.”6
The Madonna House may have been the last settlement house in

an area long known for the Jewish Settlement House, which arose

# "Golden Jubilee Celebration: 1903-1953 of the Madonna House,'pp. 13-
5 21: copies attached as Appendix I.
5 Ibid.

See the "Directory of the Charitable, Social Improvement..." by The
Civic Club of Philadelphia, 1906.
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aftar the likely prototype,''House of Industry'" on the 700 block

of Catharine Street. Protestant groups had long scoured this

part of South Philadelphia, just south of South Street, and the
reputedly crime-ridden communities attracted 'soul-savers.'" There
is no area in Philadelphia with such a strong history of immigrant
settlement houses as here, and Madonna House's history somewhat
concludes how social services among immigrants began, what had been
tried and what was successful. The same kinds of services have been
part of present-day offices for newcomers from Spanish-speaking

countries and for Far East Asians.

Madonna House's design was considerate of the ethnic group
served by the missionary staff: southern Italians were supposed to
feel comfortable, but the design prolongs the "Little Italy" colony
formed, according to Richard N. Juliani, Ph.D. with the founding of
St. Mary Magdalen de Pazzi parish nearby in 1852.7 A closer review
of Madonna House's history reveals class disparities among the
Italian groups, as well as their cultural prejudices among themselves.,
Many Italian-born or first-generation of Italian nationality had
succeeded when Madonna House was founded in 1903? so the purposes
of Madonna House seem more oriented to preserving the Catholic faith.
Admittedly, by 1953, Madonna House's .basis ''no longer exists" and
St. Paul's parish sold the property by the mid-1990s to a developer.

Madonna House's social goals and the time of its activity de-
serve scholarly attention---more than summarized herein--and its
historical significance extends beyond Philadelphia. The building's
design on busy Christian Street protects the "Little Italy'" charac-
ter as well as maintaining an architectural diversity on Christian

Street. For these reasons, Madonna House should merit designatiom.

Celeste A. Morello, MS, MA
October, 2021
(Still during COVID limitations)

Refer to Juliani, R.N., Priest. Pari h and People. Notre Dame Press,
2007, See full index on this subject, pp. 388-389.

Juliani, R.N., Building Little Italy. PSU Press, 1998;
Golden Jubilee Celebration (1903-1953) Madonna House, p. 21.
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South Philadelphia's Southwark and Moyamensing Townships had
hosted the most immigrants prior to Consolidation because the docks
on the Delaware River at Washington Avenue brought in ships with
refugees from Ireland, Germany, then eastern and southern Europe.
The photograph (above) is nominator's effort from the mid-1990s on
Pennsylvania's first House of Industry, "founded 1846" on the 700
block of Catharine Street? It was the prototype for subsequent set-
tlement houses in this neighborhood. The building on the right was
St. Martin's College, an Episcopalian-run organization planned to
attract Italian Catholics, hence the Italianate building design by
Louis C. Baker in 1906?‘%Note the similarity to Madonna House's fa-
cade from 1923-1924.)

The St. Martin's College building is now part of the Fleisher
Art Memorial.

The marker was sponsored by the Ancient Order of Hibernians (AOH),

and Irish Catholic beneficial society.

1OInformation from The Fleisher's Jeff Hindle.
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Madonna House....

(a) Has significant character, interest or value as part of the
development, heritage or cultural characteristics of the City,
Commonwealth or Nation...

and,

(j) Exemplifies the cultural, political, economic, social or
historical heritage of the community.

Villanova University's Richard N. Juliani, Ph.D. began his
research on Italian-speaking peoples in Philadelphia in the 1960s,
publishing a socio-historical review which is the basis for any
subsequent study on the city's "Little Italy" settlement in South
Philadelphia. Dr. Juliani's Buildine Little Italv: Philadelphia's

(1998) focussed on the why, how and
results of a group forming a colony in then-Moyamensing Township,
next and within a mostly Irish Catholic neighborhood by the 1840s--
coinciding with the arrivals of those fleeing famine-ravished Ireland.
Those who spoke Italian were from central to mainly northern Italy,
were skilled, arrived with families intent on forming a new home,
and they were Roman Catholic. By the early 1850s, Bishop John N.
Neumann, CSsR recognized the number of Italian-speakers in the area,
purchased land and an existing Methodist church and refitted it for
Catholic worship. A professor from the seminary who spoke Italian
would become the pastor of the first Italian national church in the
United States. The name of the church/parish was that of a Carmelite
nun from the 17th century, Mary Magdalen, from the wealthy Florentine
Pazzi family. The cultural heritage of the majority was linked to
their fellow Ligurian, Christopher Columbus whose name would appear
in social activities, a building, in speeches and celebrationsll

This group, as Juliani wrote, was sophisticated to create an
"elaborate internal institutional structure" in the Little ItalylZ2
community. (The Italian Republic did not form until 1860-1870, when
disparate states and monarchal regions were finally were added.)

11This book was published by Penn State University Press in 1998. '
Dr, Juliani, from Villanova's Department of Sociology is an emeritus.

121bid., p. 314.
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Piccolo gruppo dei Socii della FEDERAZIONE DELLE SO
CIETA’ ITALIANE di Philadelphia.

The photo above is c. 1910,
captioned as a "Small group
from the Federation of Italian

Societies of Philadelphia."

The members were from the busi-
ness class in the Little Italy
neighborhood, with their own
dues-paying organizations which
often included death benefits
to the families. These groups
also went beyond their inner
circles to aid the lower classes
in the neighborhood--without
affiliation with any church.
But their existence showed that:
internally, Italians did strive
to assist non-members,

(Ri 1906 listing of some
0 izations.)

460

SOME BENEFICIAL SOCIETIES.

Class x1x

B R W B I a1
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REPARTI DELLA SOCIETA’ PER GL'IMMIGRANTI
Ricovero
EMANUEL V. H. NARDI, Direttore
REN. DANIEL SCALABRELLA Avv. HARRY B. GANDOLFO
FRANK A, TRAVASCIO Dr. G. M. DE VECCHIS

Ufficio d’Informazioni

Avv. JOSEPH BARTILUCCI, Direttore <
REN. AGOSTINO BONANNI JOHN DI SILVESTRO <~
ALFONSO CUBICCIOTTI DR. G. M. DE VECCHIS
o #
Some of the
Madonna House
Board, were
already invol
ved in immig-
rant children
services, as
this book in
1920 recorded
ASILO INFANTILE (vedi Pag. 53)
COMITATO ASILO
REN., AGOSTINO BONANNI, Direttore. !
JOUN QUEROLI ANTONTO RAGGIO
FRANK ROSATTO HENRY DI BERARDINO | <
(0) g
COMITATO SCUOLA DI :
CITTADINANZA

Wwve HARRY B GANDOLIFO, Direttore
ENIANUEL V. H NARDI
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(A1l photos:
Temple U., SCRC)
Published ma-
terials by the
Italians in
Little Italy
differed from
these photographs
by The Octavia
Hill Association
in the early 1900

The Italian press
hid the reality
of the immigrant:
poor in the nei-
ghborhood which
The Catholic Mis-
sionary Society
would address.
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Social welfare groups were organized by the first in Little Italy
and bthey were for dues-paying members who would do occasional char-
itable work}3.Juliani portrayed a contained, manageable group which

was self-supportive--even without the Church.

A different scenario arose with Italian nationals after the
Italian Republic formed and thousands of southern Italians and Si-
cilians--generally single men seeking temporary employment--were
recruited abroad to fill the void in jobs which were abjured by
those in Philadelphia. The single male worker brought social pro-

blems leading to crime, mental illness (depression, loss of emotional

support, etc....) and a sharp rate of return to Italy, according to
Wyman who found that "50%" of Italian:immigrants to the U.S. from
14

"the 1880s to the early 1920s" left for Italy. ' A characterization
of this southern Italian immigrant versus:the earlier ones from the
north is significant for lack of family, instability in housing and
employment (as a dependent of others) and no real social status.

The Church had little interest in these temporary residents who

sent some of their earnings abroad, and kept little--not enough

to contribute to a Church, or to be a parishioner. It was this
personality which: lent non-Catholic groups to Little Italy by the
1880s, and those who brought families en masse. Wyman noted that
Italian Catholics who converted to any Protestant faith would return

to Italy where Protestant iclergy awaited.l?

Social welfare services for the newcomer in Little Italy ap-
peared as early as the 1860s among the northern Italians and the
programs were not religious affiliated. Juliani noted "1883" as
the year that Emmanuello Church began its proselytizing among the

Italians%6hiring an architect to design a quaint church that looked

La Societa di Unione e Fratellanzo Italiana met in "Columbus Hall"
at 8th and Fitzwater Streets from '"1867."

14'Wyman, M., Round-Trip to America. Cornell U. Press, 1993, p.10.
15 1bid., pp.174-176.

16 juliani, RwNu, Priest. Parish, and People. Notre Dame Press,p.122.
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as if from a Tuscan hillside. Other Episcopalians set out on
the 700 block of Catharine Street where the House of Industry was
located; the Episcopalian church was across the street for any im-
migrant to see what was availed.17

The Methodists also tried to sway errant Italian Catholics,
but the Presbyterians showed greater impact with a huge church
constructed around from the humble Emmanuello. (See p.20 )18To
the Catholic hierarchy at the Archdiocese, this Italian Presbyterian

church and its native Italian ministers proved the greatest threat.

By 1900, Little Italy had three Roman Catholic churches within
three blocks: St. Paul's, the territorial Catholic church; and
two Italian national churches, Our Lady of Good Counsel, run by the
Italian Augustinians, then St. Mary Magdalen de Pazzi. All grew
because of the southern Italian migrations, but few offered accul-
turation services, maintaining bi-lingual activities in the isolated
community. St. Paul's, with its clergy of non-Italian ancestry,
would experience the greatest challenges in growth%gwith the new
school constructed in the 1890s quickly abandoned for a larger one
by 1905, mainly for Italian-born or Italian American students. St.
Paul's was closest to where Protestant proselytizing occurred at
the Episcopal and Presbyterian churches where there were 'cases of
malicious proselytizing of the poor little ones by wealthy Protes-
tant sects."2 Indeed, John Wanamaker was said to have invested his
funds into the construction of the Presbyterians' church for the
Italians. Lower class Italians were in the thousands, crowded into
rooms at a time when child labor was permitted, or children were
left to live on the street. The Octavia Hill Association's photo-
grapher took pictures of this area's Italians living in conditions
of filth while other Italians attained education and began businesses.

Economic classes were distinctive in Little Italy and a few publi-

17 see Hawks, Msgr. Edward, William McGarvev & The Open Pulpit...
Phila.: Dolphin Press, 1935 on the Episcopalian Italian efforts.

8 This is based upon the church's size (for 3,000)and investors.
9"Catholic Standard and Times,'" May 6, 1905.
OReport of the Catholic Missionary Society of Phila. for 1909,"p. 8
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cations published in 1910 lauded Italian-born business-owners. 21

The threat was significant for the Archdiocese to act, if not
but to heed what St. Paul's pastor, Father Donovan, was reporting.
The Catholic Missionary Society's history put its origins to "1902"
with Donovan, then to '"1903" when Monsignor Henry Drumgoole organized
a group of volunteers, benefactors and an agenda. 1In 1904, this
group purchased a rowhouse at 814 South 10th Street for services
to aid the Italians which included dental, medical and legal work,
daycare, religious instruction, literacy classes, a library and edu-
cational classes, then later, sports, kindergarten "within the limits
of the small Italian quarter east of Broad and between Bainbridge
and Federal." 22

The nominated building, the Madonna House thus arose in 1923
because of the success of the organization since the first House in
1904. At the 926-930 Christian Street location, the:Madonna House
became the Catholic Missionary Society's headquarters ''Devoted to
Catechetical and Religious Instruction and to Settlement and Social
Service Work.'" (Report of 1929). Yet, in 1935, the CMS was still
proporting that '"The ultimate purpose of this Society is to bring
religious instruction to the thousands of Catholic children who are
attending public school. But because of the proselytizing work of
various non-Catholic denominations carried on in their Settlement
Houses, it was deemed expedient for the Society to adopt a similar
program to offset the Protestant influence by establishing Catholic
settlement houses, now under the supervision of the Missionary Ser-
vants of the Most Holy Trinity." By 1953, the CMS at Madonna House
reported that "after fifty years of work, the problem of Italian
immigrants no longer exists.'" Thus, it may have been the last set-

tlement house for Italians in Philadelphia.

. A., ora Colo iale...d lla Colo ia di Phila-
.: Mastro ao o r nt ng ouse, An
Phila.:L'Opinione, 1910.

22Golden Jubilee Celebration: 1903-1953 of the Madonna House. CHRC,

p.21,
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The Catholic Missionary Society was
formed under Archbishop Patrick J.
Ryan (left) in 1903, as a long-awaited
response to what had been somewhat
successful at the Italian Episcopalian
Emmanuello Church (bottom, left) and

the Italian Presbyterian Church (below)
both were one block from Madonna House.

MOST REV PATRICK J, RYAN, DD

The Protestants intentionally con-
structed their churches in Little
Italy to draw converts away from
Roman Catholicism. Many Italians
justified leaving the Church because
of cultural differences with the
clergy; Protestants were said to
give food, clothing and other ma-

terial things to struggling Italians.
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Sister Maria de Lourdes, Supervisor, and Group of Teachers

1935-1936 photos at Madonna House.

A well equipped Library of wholesome literature is available to the children at all fimes
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NEW, MADONNA HOUSE  ADONNA HOUSE
FOR ITALIAN GOLONY

Work on Building at 926-268-30
Christian Street Shortly to
Be Commenced
MODERN OFFICES INCLUDED

Clinics and Service Headquarters,
Legal Advice and Classrooms

Will Fill Long Felt Want

Among Improvements

Flans and speclfications tor the erec-
tion of a new Madonna House at 926-
28-30 Christion atreet, have been re-
cently approved and lthe dld awarded
by Hls Entnence, the Cardlnal. The
work fs to begin within the next

montha and will fulfill the dream
ambltion of hupdreds who have as-

Lthe
J4.

a
of Yale Tex brick. It la
ths archftecture of the
On elther sldo ot

will be tha dlrec-

atreot, The same order and scheme
will be followed for the boys on the

era and Wu ters of the nna
Houss will en te ihe ca af-
siatanan hat tha dream am-
bitlen of ia aboul te ba 29d.

"The Catholic Standard and Times'

-23-
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Much was expected
at Madonna House,
said to be the
first settlement
house established
by the Archdiocese
of Philadelphia.

Architect Cummis-
key's drawing is
from the Yearbook
in 1929 of The Ca-
tholic Charities
and Social Welfare
Artivities, which
had been reported

in news articles.

' (above) August

4, 1923; (right) April 12, 1924 edition.
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NEW MADONNA HOUSE
GORNER-STONE 15 LAID

Building Blessed by His Eminence,
Who Delivers Informative
Discowrse

SHOWS IMMIGRATION CAUSES

Cardinal Analyses Reasons for
Exodus—Other Addresses
Made

Another evidence of the Catlinlie
. social programme was brought to thn
fore last Sunday, and warning was

served that the Ch will not permnis
i her c¢hildren, no n r of what rave,

| to be ensnared into the meshes of jr-
{rellglon or robbed of their Traith I

those working under the guise of
I charity, at the corner-stone laying and
blessing of the magnificent new MNla-

donna House at 926-30 EY
slreet

day

S the

1 last

! nias.

His Eminence presen a thoughtfui

analysls of the cau wlileh have

brou , within the last few decades,

so 1 e a number of Jtallan immi-
grants to these shores. Tconomic dis-
1 cipal

e
igra-
1 laid
to rellgious bigotry, and especially
that un-American spirit which would
keep out & man because of his re-
liglon. TRecalling Columbus and Ver-
razano, discoverers of'the new warld,
Hls Eininence asked hiy hearers if ir
were, right or falr to exclude Jtalians

from the cont t  discovered by
Ttalians, His a 83 will be found
appended.

An imposing programme had heen
arranged for the occasion, bul tha syl
of-door festivities were cancelled he-
cause of the bad weather A repre-
sentative number of lalty, were, how -
ever present In St. Paul's Church,
where the addresses were dellvered.”

The speakers, i addition to the
Cardlnal were the Tight Rev 2Afon-
signor Heury T. Drumgoole. D. 1),
LI. D, Luigi 8illitl, Royal Ttalian
Consul, and Henrl DI Berardino.
Chevalier Sillltl spoke in Ttallan. Mon-
slgnor Drumgoole’'s address and that
dellvered by Mr. DI Berardino are 1rce-
produced in this igsue.




As adopted January 14, 2022

24—

Madonna House....
(d) Embodies distinguishing characteristics of an architectural
style:

"FLORENTINE PALAZZO. STYLZ" (15th Century)

Architect Charles Cummiskey won the commission from The Catho-
lic Missionary Society to plan an institutional building on the lot
at Christian Street, adjacent to St. Paul's old parochial school.
Cummiskey's design apparently adapted several factors: limitations
of space (on a 48X70 lot); focus on a very busy street; the then-

20 year mission for Italians in the areaj; any influence(s) from St.
Paul's R.C. Church across the street and its schools next to the
lot's northeast and southeast; and how the interior space would be
used.

The new Madonna House's design combined Louis C. Baker's facade
from his (Episcopal) St. Martin's School across from the House of
Industry on Catharine Street,Z%nd the "Florentine Palace Block'" a
new type of urban residential building popularized in the 1400s by
Michelozzo (1396-1472) in Florence, Italy. The design was to appear
as '"Ttalian" for clientele who were from southern Italian peasant

villages, hundreds of miles from Florence.

Art historians cited a "Renaissance Revival' architectural style
as early as the John Notman design for The Athenaeum (1845-1847) in
Philadelphia. Réctangular, with '"Stuccoed brick and coursed brown-
stone ashlar" the three stories under the "flat roof":ﬁgld most of
the architectural characteristics that Chastel noted in directing
the "Florentine Palace-Block" style to Michelozzc?? This is a precise
dating and style, instead of a general "Renaissance'" descriptive.

23Baker's two-tone portal surround with the same Della Robbia-type of
terra cotta Madonna and Child plaque atop the brick is unique and

not found in Florentine palazzo facades.
24Webster, R., Temple U.Press, pp.60-61.
SChastel, A., Harper & Row, 1963, pp. 155-157.
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Michelozzo initially was hired to design a residential building
for the Medici family in the city of Florence. These types of ur-
ban structures attained the term '"palazzo,'but Hartt advised that
the word '"palazzo'" was used freely to refer to any large building
at that time (15th century). The Medici Palace established the
characteristics to describe the "Florentine Palace'" of that century:

1) rectangular "block" plan

2) rough or rusticated masonry varying on each level
3) about 3 to 4 stories in height

4) overhanging cornice

5) "balanced system of windows"

6) facade close to street level, not set back.

About thirty such palazzi were constructed in Florence after

the Medici palazzo. (Palazzi is Italian plural for palazzo.)

Michelozzo's design derived from First Century Roman tenement
houses in developed areas. (See p.26 ). Wealthy Florentine families
occupied these 15th century interpretations where they had great
spaces to entertain. The success of this design in architectural

history is where in the 1500s, the "block-palaces'" arose in Rome 2/

Madonna House's design recalls elements from the 1st Century
Roman and 15th century Florentine:mainly in plan. The "fortress-like"
characterization given to the Florentine palazzi held that each level
was a different degree of rustication; the Roman prototype did not2.8
The ‘design called for an unrefined appearance in the masonry.

The exterior's three levels are distinguished by a belt course,

which is consistent to the Roman and Florentine models.29

26Chastel, op.cit.

: Hartt, F., History of Italian Renaissance Art.
Prenticé-Hall, 1975, pp. 124-25;258; Janson, HW, NY:

Roman Art-and Architecture. Oxford U.Press,
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T 90
17 10
197 17 .
Above is Wheeler's model of a Roman
tenement (1st C.AD) of brick and con-
crete to compare in form and textures
to the 15th century Florentine palazzi
142. MICHELOZZO DI BARTOLOMMEO. (Lef t and below in Hartt. )
P_a]g@,_Medici-R,i.ccardi,' Florence. Begun 1444

r

307. BENEDETTO DA MA1ANO
1 and IL CRONACA.
] Palazzo Strozzi, Florence.

~ 1489-1507
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Madonna House....

(h) Owing to its unique location or singular physical charac-
teristic, represents an established and familiar visual feature
of the neighborhood, community or City.

With the understanding that one is in the former Little Italy,
the Madonna House's architectural design would not be unexpected
on Christian Street. Since the demolition of the c. 1898 St. Paul
School/ Norbertine residence in the 1950s, Madonna House has been
given wider breadth in view, allowing for all of its sides to be
seen unobstructed. Visitors to the area see a quasi-Florentine
palazzo and upon closer look, see unusual brick construction, not
only in the manner of the bricks' courses, but in the textural de-

signs. The Yale-Tex brick brings a quirkiness as well.

Locals have known of the Madonna House as a property of St.
Paul's parish until the mid-1990s. The building was where the Tri-
nitarian Sisters worked in a variety of social services within the
once-heavily populated parish and neighborhood. Many in the neigh-
borhood had relatives who benefitted from the Sisters' work and that
of The Catholic Missionary Society when Madonna House was its head-
quarters until 1953. But, Madonna House's origins were part of the
City's and especially this particular neighborhood's long history
of services to immigrants, beginning with the Irish Catholics in
the 1840s--among them were the first parishioners of St. Paul's
Roman Catholic Church, founded in 1843. Farther east, but on or
near Christian Street, eastern European Jews had related organiza-
tions, notably what is recalled in the history of the Settlement
Music School on the 400 block of Christian. However, Madonna House
carries not only this history, but an architectural visual for the
Little Italy community--there are very few "Italian-like" buildings
now in the neighborhood to attest to the 100 years plus of a major-

ity of Italian nationals who resided here.
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This view is from South 10th Street, on Christian Street, looking
eastward with Madonna House on right, next to the St. Paul's
Schoo! (towards center above; below) in 1956. St. Paul's R.C.

Church is hidden beyond the trees on left.

Right: Edwin F.
Durang's c. 1896

St. Paul's Schoo-
which was next

to Madonna House
before it was
demolished by the
late 1950s.

(Photo: EF Dur-
ang's "Album.")

S PAULS SCHLOOL, NINTIL AND CIIRISTIAN STRERTS, PIHILA
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Above: Madonna House's architectural features are on display
everyday, or for public events, like this Irish Catholic
parade to homor those who came to this neighborhood.

Madonna House's contribution to the City's andCommonwealth's
immigrant settlement history remains within the presence of this
stately building on Christian Street in Bella Vista. Although it
was the headquarters of The Catholic Missionary Society, the loca-
tion was intended to counter Episcopalian and Presbyterian workers
who lured Italian Catholics to their denominations. And architec-
turally, the Madonna House competed with the Episcopalians to try
to attract Italians with the Florentine palazzo design. However,
presently, condominia and often a small business are here in a
building still with a cross and Della Robbia terra cotta of the
Madonna & Child (a replica) to align with its Catholic past. It
is a building appropriate for visitors trying to find what of Lit-
tle Italy remains.

For these and the aforementioned reasons, Madonna House merits
historical designation.

Celeste A. Morello, MS, MA
October, 2021

(Still during COVID limitations)
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Pages from Madonna House's 50th anniversary booklet.
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